
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO

THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2016
8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Todd Wiltgen, Vice Chair
Larry Hudkins
Bill Avery

Commissioners Absent: Deb Schorr

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on March 16, 2016.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:38
a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MARCH 10, 2016 STAFF
MEETING

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the March 10, 2016
Staff Meeting minutes.  Wiltgen, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye. 
Avery and Schorr were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. City Library Board Appointment (Exhibits A & B)

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Hudkins seconded approval of the addition to the
agenda.  Hudkins, Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye.  Avery and Schorr
were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



Avery arrived at the meeting at 8:41 a.m.

 3 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, presented a legislative update and legislative bills of
interest report (Exhibits C & D), noting the following:

• Lobbyists met with members of the Lancaster County delegation
regarding Legislative Bill (LB) 742 (Change county population
thresholds) and no concerns were expressed.

• LB 774 (Provide a sales and use tax exemption for purchases by non-
profit substance abuse treatment centers) is moving up the agenda. 
This bill contains LB 542 (Provide a sales tax exemption for purchases
by county agricultural societies) as part of a Revenue Committee
amendment (AM 2422).  Kohout noted Wiltgen had inquired about the
museum tax exemption and said it specifically deals with items of
historic interest.

• Several amendments have been filed to LB 894 (Change provisions
relating to juveniles).  One amendment (AM 2610) says a county
board may create a guardian at litem division. 

• In terms of LB 958 (Change provisions relating to budgets, the
valuation of agricultural land, and levy limitations), the Revenue
Committee is looking at a two part bill that would: 1) Appropriate an
additional $20,000,000 to $30,000,000 into the Property Tax Relief
Act, with the limitation that it is to be targeted to agricultural land, and
2) Provide for a 3% limitation applicable only to community colleges. 

• LB 960 (Adopt the Transportation Innovation Act and provide transfers
from the Cash Reserve Fund) advanced to Select File with broad
support. (see talking points in Exhibit E).

• Senator Jim Smith is still working with the Nebraska Association of
County Officials (NACO) and Nebraska Cattlemen Association to work
out a compromise on LB 977 (Change provisions relating to
implements of husbandry on highways).

• LB 1013 (Change tax on cigarettes and other tobacco products and
provide for distribution of proceeds) is still held in the Revenue
Committee.

• In terms of LB 1032 (Adopt the Transitional Health Insurance Program
Act and provide duties for the Department of Health and Human
Services), the Health and Human Services Committee has chosen, via
Committee Amendment (AM 2473), to close the cost gap by
appropriating $63,000,000 over a three-year period from the State
Health Care Cash Fund (tobacco settlement dollars) (Exhibit F).  The
Act would sunset after three years.  

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



Brent Meyer, Noxious Weed Control Superintendent, appeared and reported LB 711
(Change provisions of the Noxious Weed Control Act and create the Riparian Vegetation
Management Task Force) has been amended into LB 1038 (Change water appropriation
application provisions), noting the Natural Resources Committee has designated that
bill  a priority.  

ACTION ITEMS

A. Resolution Regarding the Proposed Sale of Vacated Portions of South
54th Street, Including Declaring that the Property no Longer Serves a
County Purpose, Determining Fair Market Value and Setting the Date
for Sale of the Property, as Amended

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, said it was brought to his attention that the
Board’s action at the March 15, 2016 County Board of Commissioners Meeting was to
approve an amendment to the motion to approve a resolution regarding the proposed
sale of vacated portions of South 54th Street, including declaring that the property no
longer serves a County purposed, determining fair market value and setting the date
for sale of the property to include the fair market value of $116,000, but the Board did
not vote on the original motion.

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Hudkins seconded to approve the original motion to
approve the resolution.  Avery, Wiltgen, Hudkins and Amundson voted
aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Update on General Assistance (GA) Move to the Lincoln-Lancaster
County Health Department (LLCHD)

Amundson said the Public Building Commission (PBC) has decided to have Property
Management remodel space in the Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department
(LLCHD) Building to house the General Assistance (GA) Office rather than hiring an
outside firm.  

B. County Board Representative for Mayor and County Recognition for
National Service (April 15, 2016, 3:00-4:00 p.m. at Tower Plaza, 13th &
P Streets) NOTE: The correct date is April 5, 2016

Amundson agreed to represent the County Board at the event.  It was noted a
resolution will be scheduled on the April 5, 2016 County Board of Commissioners
Meeting agenda to recognize AmeriCorps and Senior Corps volunteers.

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



 4 SOUTH BELTWAY UPDATE - Mike Owen, Engineer VII, Lorraine Legg,
Engineer V, and Andrew Mansfield, Engineer, III, Nebraska Department of
Roads (NDOR); Pam Dingman, County Engineer; Mike Breinzo,
Transportation Planner, Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Department

Mike Owen, Engineer VII, Lorraine Legg, Engineer V, and Andrew Mansfield, Engineer,
III, Nebraska Department of Roads (NDOR), discussed the South Beltway (a four-lane
divided highway) project which will link Nebraska Highway 2 and U.S. Highway 77.  It
was noted there will be interchanges at Saltillo Road, U.S. Highway 77, South 27th

Street, South 68th Street, South 84th Street, and South 120th Street/Nebraska Highway 2
(See Exhibits G-I for information on the purpose and need, project schedule, project
overview, proposed typical section, design details, and maps).  An agreement with
Lancaster County will outline proposed construction on county roads, changes in the
county road network, and funding and responsibilities for lighting, traffic control, county
road closures, municipal separate storm water sewer systems (MS4) treatments, etc. 
Construction of the South Beltway, which is anticipated to start in 2020, is projected to
cost $200,000,000 (80% State/Federal funds and 20% City funds) and is anticipated to
take five to seven years to build.  It was noted the design for the South Beltway also
accommodates the future East Beltway.

Mansfield outlined the following changes and impacts to the County road network:

• Rokeby Road (close the existing at-grade crossing of Rokeby Road and
U.S. Highway 77, construct cul-de-sacs on both sides of Rokeby Road,
and build a frontage road on the west side of U.S. Highway 77 to
provide access to properties).

• Saltillo Road (close the existing at-grade crossing at U.S. Highway 77,
reconstruct Saltillo Road and put it on a grade-separated structure over
the South Beltway and U.S. Highway 77, construct roundabouts
(circular intersections) at the ramp terminals in addition to
reconstructing the access drives to get into Shrine Way (a private road
accessing the Sesostris Shrine Center) on the west side of U.S. Highway
77 and a five-legged roundabout on the east ramp terminal with legs to
Saltillo Road, South 14th Street, and access to Shoemakers Truck Stop
and accesses to the ramps.

• Closing a segment of South 14th Street and existing accesses to
Conoco/Phillips Products terminal and the former Silver Spoke Saloon
and reconstruct frontage roads to provide access to those properties.

• Construct a cul-de-sac at Bennet Road east and west of U.S. Highway
77, regrade and resurface the road with gravel from U.S. Highway 77
west to Southwest 2nd Street and east to South 25th Street, and build a
small frontage road on the west side of U.S. Highway 77 to provide
access to a residential development.

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



• South Beltway will go over South 25th Street, Salt Creek, the
Homestead Trail and Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) Railway. 
South 25th Street will remain open.

• A roundabout will be constructed on Saltillo Road and South 27th Street,
which currently ends at Saltillo Road, will be extended south of Saltillo
Road to a diamond interchange (South 27th Street will be on a bridge
over the South Beltway) and the alignment will be tied back into South
38th Street/Bennet Road south of the interchange.  Concrete surfacing
will end south of the interchange ramps and transition back to a gravel
roadway.  Cul-de-sacing of South 38th Street, north and south of the
South Beltway, is also proposed.  Small frontage roads will provide
access, north and south, at the South 38th Street/Bennet Road corner.

• South 54th Street will be placed on a grade-separated structure over the
South Beltway and a segment of South 54th Street will be
reconstructed.

• South 68th Street will be a diamond interchange over the South Beltway
and will tie into a roundabout at the Saltillo Road/South 70th Street
interchange.  South 68th Street will be closed north of the South
Beltway with a cul-de-sac and a roundabout will be constructed.

• South 82nd Street/South 84th Street interchange will be a folded
diamond interchange because there are wetlands on the southeast side
of the interchange.  A small frontage road will be constructed to
provide access to acreages.  South 82nd Street will be cul-de-saced on
both sides.  A roundabout will be constructed at South 84th

Street/Saltillo Road to correct the offset “T” intersection that currently
exists.  

• Saltillo Road will be placed on a bridge over the South Beltway so
South 96th Street will be realigned east of the existing intersection of
South 98th Street and South 98th Street will be relocated north of the
South Beltway to provide for better site distance.  South 96th Street will
be eliminated from Saltillo Road to the South Beltway.

• South Beltway will go over the existing Omaha Public Power District
(OPPD) Railway Track and relocated South 120th Street and Nebraska
Highway 2 (which is being called Business 2) will be tied together and
put together on a grade-separated structure over the South Beltway as
it continues to the east to tie into the existing Nebraska Highway 2. 
South 120th Street will be cul-de-saced south of the South Beltway,
north of the OPPD Rail Spur, and a new at-grade rail crossing will be
constructed to tie into the bridge over the South Beltway.  The existing
Rokeby Road/OPPD Rail Spur crossing will be closed.  The existing
South 98th Street/OPPD Rail Spur crossing would also be closed and a
segment of South 98th Street and Breagan Road reconstructed with a
new at-grade crossing.  The number of OPPD Rail Spur crossings would
remain the same.

• Rokeby Road, east of the OPPD Rail Spur, and South 120th Street, north
of the South Beltway, would be closed.

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



• A frontage roadway on the south side of Nebraska Highway 2, east of
the interchange, would be closed with a cul-de-sac and would be tied in
with a frontage road back to South 134th Street.  South 134th Street will
be placed on a grade-separated structure over the South Beltway and 
the existing South 134th Street/Nebraska Highway 2 intersection will be
closed.  A series of frontage roads on the northeast, southeast and
southwest side will be constructed to provide access to residential and
farm properties.  The existing South 134th Street at-grade crossing with
the OPPD Rail Spur will be shifted slightly to the east and a frontage
road will be constructed back to South 134th Street, north of Nebraska
Highway 2, to provide access to properties.

Pam Dingman, County Engineer, remarked the South Beltway design takes care of a lot
of safety issues in the area with minimal impact to businesses.

Hudkins questioned the need to close the Rokeby Road and U.S. Highway 77
intersection, noting it carries a lot of traffic to Trinity Chapel Church.  Mansfield said
traffic would need to exit at Warlick Boulevard or at the Saltillo Road interchange.  Owen
said the intent is to create a freeway system so interchanges have to be spaced to
logical points.  A certain distance is also required to add and drop lanes.  Avery inquired
about the spacing standards for exits.  Owen said it is one mile apart in an urban
interchange system and a minimum of two miles apart in a rural system.  Hudkins asked
whether they considered off road access for traffic coming from Lincoln.  Owen said 
“right-ins and right-outs” need to be eliminated in order to get to freeway standards. 
Access will just be by interchanges.  Owen noted NDOR also plans to move the West
Bypass from expressway standards to freeway standards in the future.  Hudkins said
County residents are opposed to that.

Avery asked why Bennet Road will have gravel surfacing instead of pavement.  Dingman
explained that section of Bennet Road is dirt so a gravel surface would be a major
improvement.  She said the County doesn’t pave a road until there are traffic counts of
300 to 400 vehicles a day.

Hudkins expressed concern regarding truck traffic on the Saltillo Road roundabouts.
Legg said Shoemakers Truck Stop is aware of the design.  Owen said there are similar
roundabouts on U.S. Highway 75 with significant truck traffic.

Wiltgen asked whether the South Beltway will alleviate traffic on Old Cheney Road. 
Dingman said that issue will be addressed in the 2040 Long Range Transportation Plan.

Hudkins asked why full interchanges are planned at South 70th Street and South 84th

Street.  Owen said they were laid out in the late 1990's and said he lacks the
background to provide an answer.  Legg thought it was based off public input.  Dingman
said South 70th Street and South 84th Street are major corridors and were always part of
the Long-Range Traffic Plan.

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



Hudkins asked why traffic is not provided access to old “Old Nebraska Highway 2" to
come into Lincoln.  Legg explained it is becomes complicated with the possibility of an
East Beltway being added.  It was felt it would be better to bring traffic in through an
interchange.   

Amundson inquired about the impact to the unincorporated community of Cheney. 
Dingman did not feel it would be significant.  Dingman said you would not want to route
significant traffic through Cheney, given the condition of its infrastructure, adding NDOR
is aware of the concerns. 

Owen asked the Board to review a draft agreement and submit its comments to NDOR
within the next four to six weeks, adding NDOR would like to reach an agreement 
before taking the plan to the public.  NOTE: The County Clerk’s Office was not provided
a copy of the agreement.

 5 UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS - Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer;
Liz Thanel, Accountant, Budget and Fiscal Office; Sara Hoyle, Human
Services Director

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said the County has been carrying some old
uncollectible accounts for the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC), Mental Health
Crisis Center and General Assistance (GA) because Medicaid only covered a portion of 
services provided and suggested the Board take action to “write off” those accounts.  He
reported a total of $169,537.13 for the mental health portion with balances ranging in
amounts from less than $10.00 up to $400.00. 

In response to a question from Wiltgen, Liz Thanel, Accountant, Budget and Fiscal
Office, said the accounts are 18 months to 2 years old.  She said, in the past, CMHC
wrote off the uncollectible accounts at the end of the year as a routine action.  Meyer
added he believes Board needs to take action on uncollectible accounts, not the
department.

Hudkins asked whether there would be value in stepping-up the collection procedure to
try to collect more.  Thorpe said these accounts were for CMHC clients and said CMHC
was not successful in locating them.

Sara Hoyle, Human Services Director, reported a balance of $92,446.38 for uncollectible
accounts, ranging from $1.98 to over $200.00, for GA clients.  She said the accounts
cover the period of 2006 to 2014 and reflect pharmacy claims that were not reimbursed
by Medicaid.  Hoyle noted the County had contracted with Wagey Drug and said it is her
understanding that Medicaid would not provide reimbursement in some instances
because it had assigned another pharmacy to the client.  NOTE: Wagey Drug submitted 
claims to the County and the County paid the pharmacy, which in turn sought

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



reimbursement from Medicaid on behalf of the County.  She said she is working with
Eagan, Dave Derbin, Deputy County Attorney and Medicaid to try to designate the
County as the surface provider so it can directly seek reimbursement.  

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded to direct the County Attorney’s
Office to prepare a resolution to write off the uncollectible accounts. 

Wiltgen, who serves on the GA Monitoring Committee, said there has been a significant
increase in revenues to offset the expense.

ROLL CALL:  Wiltgen, Hudkins, Avery and Amundson voted aye.  Schorr was absent
from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

C. Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE) Records Manager Update

Eagan noted meetings were held with the department heads who had expressed
concerns about allowing access to their records.

Wiltgen said he still has concerns about internal controls and sent an e-mail to Erik
Willsey, Kapish Software Company, regarding safeguards in the HP Records Manager
(HP RM) system (Exhibit J).

D. Prudential Client Conference (May 11-13, 2016 in Colorado Springs,
Colorado)

Eagan said the Prudential has extended an invitation to attend the Client Conference
and will pay all costs other than travel.  He said he and Doug Cyr would like to attend
and said their travel costs could be paid out of the Lancaster County Retirement
Expense Account.  NOTE: Eagan and Cyr are members of the Pension Review
Committee (PRC).

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded to authorize Kerry Eagan and Doug
Cyr to attend the Prudential Client Conference with travel costs paid out of
the Lancaster County Retirement Expense Account.  Hudkins, Avery,
Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion
carried 4-0.

 6 RURAL TRANSIT UPDATE - Randy Jones, Aging Partners Director

Randy Jones, Aging Partners Director, gave an update on the Rural Transit Program
noting a significant increase in ridership (see Exhibits K & L).  He said there have been
some staffing changes and salary savings have been used to increase marketing of the
program.  Fares were compared with neighboring counties and were found to be

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



consistent for one way transport.  There appears to be some confusion regarding after
hours fares and those fares are being reviewed.  Jones said they are also looking at
restructuring the routes to provide more access to the northern and southern portions of
the County. 

Jones said he will be bringing forward the annual public transportation operating
assistance funding request in April and said the County will be asked to provide match in
the amount of $16,697 (a 12% reduction). 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

E. Lincoln Marathon Volunteers

Amundson and Hudkins indicated they will not be available on April 29th or 30th to assist
with the event.

F. City-County Common Meeting Date Change

Minette Genuchi, Administrative Assistant to the County Board, appeared and said Trent
Fellers, Lincoln City Council Chair, has asked that the meeting be rescheduled from May
2nd to sometime in June and said June 27th is the first Monday that all County Board
members will be available.  There was no objection to the request.

G. Merit Pay for Directors

Avery said he and Amundson met with Doug McDaniel, Lincoln-Lancaster County Human
Resources Director, to discuss the issue and concluded the Board should not provide
merit pay to directors since there are no standards in place to evaluate merit. 
Amundson said the current format, which involves a conversation with each director,
would have to become more formal.  She added the Board’s recent action to set the
salary of Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director, was a salary, rather than a
merit, increase.

H. Mental Health Crisis Center Tentative Open House Date (April 15, 2016)

Informational only.

 7 INTRODUCTION OF JENNIFER DUROW, NEW ACCOUNTANT IN
THE COUNTY TREASURER’S OFFICE - Andy Stebbing, County
Treasurer; Candace Meredith, Chief Deputy Treasurer

Andy Stebbing, County Treasurer, introduced Jennifer Durow, the new accountant in the
County Treasurer’s Office.  

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



Durow discussed her banking background and said she working to become a Certified
Public Accountant (CPA).

Hudkins suggested the County Treasurer’s Office consult the Nebraska Public Agency
Investment Trust (NPAIT) regarding investment of funds.

Stebbing also reported on the 2016 Public Delinquent Tax Lien Sale that was held March
7th noting the sale brought in $1,000,000.

Avery exited the meeting at 10:34 a.m.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. City Library Board Appointment (Exhibits A & B)

There was general consensus to schedule appointment of Marcy Baker to the Library
Board on the March 22, 2016 County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda. 

Avery returned to the meeting at 10:38 a.m.

DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC) - Wiltgen

Wiltgen said Steve Henderson, Chief Information Officer, Information Services (IS), gave
an update on the cost allocation for Fiscal Year (FY) 2016-17 and FY 2017-18.  He said
the average increase next year will be 2.93% and 3.98% the following year, adding
there hasn’t been any significant “push back” from any of the users thus far.  Wiltgen
said they also received information about the City’s Open Data Project which would
create a standard for electronic data. 

B. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Amundson/Hudkins

Amundson said they approved changes and an extension of the completion date for
remodel of the Benesch Building to house the Mental Health Crisis Center.  Hudkins
noted the window film the architects specified does not provide sufficient screening and 
the architect has been asked to absorb the $7,000 to $9,000 cost to correct it. 
Amundson said they also discussed moving General Assistance (GA) to the Lincoln-
Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD), security issues, an Active Shooter Policy
and the upcoming severe weather drill. 

Page 10 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



 8 PENDING AND POTENTIAL LITIGATION - Doug Cyr, Chief Deputy
County Attorney; David Derbin, Deputy County Attorney

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded to enter Executive Session at 10:40
a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards to
pending and potential litigation.  Hudkins, Avery, Wiltgen and Amundson
voted aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0. 

The Chair restated the reason for the Board entering Executive Session.

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Avery seconded to exit Executive Session at 11:15
a.m.  Avery, Wiltgen, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 9 PRUDENTIAL GUIDESPARK PILOT PROGRAM - Crystal Vacura,
Security Education Counselor, Prudential Retirement

Crystal Vacura, Security Education Counselor, Prudential Retirement, provided
information on Prudential’s GuideSpark, a tool to help participants in the County’s
retirement plan to assess and improve their financial well-being, and asked the
Lancaster County to serve as a pilot for the program (Exhibit M). She said there will be
no cost to the County or participants.

There was consensus to serve as a pilot for GuideSpark.

10 ACTION ITEMS

A. Resolution Regarding the Proposed Sale of Vacated Portions of South
54th Street, Including Declaring that the Property no Longer Serves a
County Purpose, Determining Fair Market Value and Setting the Date
for Sale of the Property, as Amended

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

11 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

12 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Update on General Assistance (GA) Move to the Lincoln-Lancaster
County Health Department

B. County Board Representative for Mayor and County Recognition for
National Service (April 15, 2016, 3:00-4:00 p.m. at Tower Plaza, 13th &
P Streets)

Page 11 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



C. Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE) Records Manager Update
D. Prudential Client Conference (May 11-13, 2016 in Colorado Springs,

Colorado)
E. Lincoln Marathon Volunteers
F. City-County Common Meeting Date Change
G. Merit Pay for Directors
H. Mental Health Crisis Center Tentative Open House Date (April 15, 2016)

Items A-H were moved forward on the agenda.

13 PENDING

There were no pending items.

14 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC) - Wiltgen
B. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Amundson/Hudkins

Items A & B were moved forward on the agenda.

C. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board - Hudkins

Hudkins said it was originally proposed that ballfields in the area that Speedway
Properties and Nelnet are planning to redevelop near 21st and N Streets would be
replaced in close proximity to the neighborhood.  He said other locations are now being
proposed, including 84th and “O” Streets and South 84th Street and Yankee Hill Road,
which he said the Advisory Board does not support.  Hudkins said they also received a
recommendation from the Golf Committee to raise golf fees at the Highlands and
Pioneers Golf Courses.

D. Juvenile Justice Review Committee (JJRC) - Amundson

Meeting was rescheduled.

E. Region V Services Executive Committee - Wiltgen

Meeting was cancelled.

F. Region V Services Governing Board- Wiltgen

Wiltgen said Dave Merrill, Region V Services Executive Director, gave an overview of
services and mentioned that March is Developmental Disability Awareness Month.

Page 12 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



G. Region V Systems Governing Board - Wiltgen

Wiltgen said they approved a new contract with the Healthy Families Project to relocate
their offices from Trabert Hall and approved contract amendments including $109,000
for additional services (medical management, outpatient and dual residence) with
CenterPointe, Inc.  He noted Region V received additional dollars from a redistribution of
unused state funds and said there will be a three-to-one match to draw down the funds. 
Wiltgen said those costs will be passed along to the counties that make up Region V and
said Lancaster County’s contribution for the next fiscal year will be increased by 27.54%.

H. Region V Systems Executive Committee - Wiltgen

Meeting was cancelled.

I. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Budget
Monitoring Committee - Amundson

Amundson said discussion focused on the Railroad and Transportation Safety District’s
(RTSD’s) 33rd and Cornhusker Study, the City’s proposed storm water bond issue, and
the City’s budget process.

J. General Assistance (GA) Monitoring Committee - Wiltgen

Wiltgen said Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, gave a budget update and Sara
Hoyle, Human Services Director, presented statistics on usage.  He said the Committee
discussed proposed revisions to the GA Guidelines.  Eagan said any references to
behavioral health services and related assisted living services will be eliminated because
they are Region V responsibilities.  Wiltgen said they also received an update on
Health360, a new community program designed to provide uninsured individuals with
access to free or discounted medications, assistance in finding a medical home and
access to specialty medical care, and the health care exchange.  Eagan said they will
continue to look at using GA dollars to pay insurance premiums for GA clients on the
health care exchange, noting there is a question of whether the County would forfeit its
right to be reimbursed by Medicaid if it does so. 

K. Parks and Recreation Futures Committee - Hudkins

Hudkins reported on revisions to the plans to expand the Lincoln Children’s Zoo,
including moving most of the parking across A Street.  He said the Committee feels a
pedestrian bridge across A Street would be needed.

Avery inquired about plans for the Ager Indoor Play Center.  Hudkins said it would be
eliminated under the new proposal.

Page 13 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016



15 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

16 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Avery moved and Wiltgen seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:49 a.m. 
Avery, Wiltgen, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Schorr was absent
from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 14 BOC/STAFF/03/17/2016


































































































































































































































































































































